Colerain Township « 4200 Springdale Road - Colerain Township, Ohio 45251
Phone (513) 385-7500 » Fax (513) 245-6503 - www.coleraintwp.org

Trustees: Dennis P. Deters, Melinda A. Rinehart, Jeffrey F. Ritter
Fiscal Officer: Heather E. Harlow + Administrator: James M. Rowan

COLERAIN

EST. 1794 .
Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees

September 9, 2014

Opening of Meeting
Executive Session 5:00 PM
Pledge of Allegiance 6:00 PM

Approval of Minutes

e ko =

Presentations
Hamilton County Park Ranger Life Saving Award
Public Safety Reports
Trustees’ Report
Citizen Address
Public Hearing

© ©® N o

Demolition of the Condemned Structure at 3777 Poole Road
Preliminary Development Plan for Snows Lake located at 4344 Dry Ridge
10. New Business
Public Services
Public Safety

Fire

Memorandum of Agreement of US Marshals SErViCe.........ccovviveiiiiieeeiii e cvre s ssanessrnnss Action
Public Services

Parks

Taste Of Colerain REPOMS ..o Information

Recycle Day — Saturday September 20", 2014 .............oo oot Information
Zoning

NUisaNCce ADAtEMENt uwauasivmsnssinis s o e s T s B P T e i Action
Administration

Approval of Employment AGreemMENt ............ccoeiiiiciiiiiiie ettt s Action

Approval of Contract Addendum with Cincinnati Bell Technology Solutions..............coccvevnnnn... Action

Approval of Interfund TransSfers ...... ..ot rs e enaeraesrassrssnees Action

Approval of HR Document Management SOIULION .........c...vvvivivvesieee e sessseesessesesssessesasssesssens Action

Fiscal Officer’'s Report

12. Executive Session - if needed
13. Adjournment

Resolution # 53-14




MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
UNITED STATES MARSHALS SERVICE
AND COLERAIN TOWNSHIP DEPARTMENT OF FIRE AND
EMERGENCY SERVICES

1. PURPOSE:

Deputy United States Marshals, employed by the United States Marshals Service
(USMS), who are trained and certified as Emergency Medical Technicians (EMTs) are
encouraged to work in a patient care setting to gain experience in handling traumatic injuries and
to maintain proficiency as a patient care provider. These Deputy United States Marshals
(DUSMs) provide medical services and medical advice to support their team operations.

The purpose of this agreement is to allow the United States Marshals Service
DUSMs to enhance their skills and maintain their proficiency with the Emergency Medical
Services (EMS) providers of the Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services
which will provide them with the ability to maintain their training requirement, to practice and
hone their medical skills, and to learn about current practices from fellow medical professionals.
The Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services will receive additional
support at no cost and the EMS personnel will be provided with the opportunity to work side by
side and become familiar with the United States Marshals Service DUSMSs, who on a daily basis
do not provide definitive medical care but may be called upon to provide rapid in-field treatment.
This opportunity will increase the readiness of our EMT DUSMs and provide a service to the
EMS and the community.

This Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) establishes the agreement and
responsibilities of the United States Marshals Service and the Colerain Township Department of
Fire and Emergency Services to permit EMT deputies to receive training and work alongside
EMS.

2. RESPONSIBILITIES:
A. The United States Marshals Service agrees:
a. To provide EMT qualified DUSMs who operate within the State of Ohio
standard scope of care under the supervision of a qualified Medical

Director.

b. To ensure that its personnel are fit for duty at all times.



c. To ensure that all personnel performing services under this agreement are
properly recorded in accordance with any relevant USMS Policy
Directives. No stipend, fees or salary will be provided by the Colerain
Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services to the United
States Marshals Service EMT DUSMs.

d. To provide the Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency
Services the names of personnel and a written schedule of duty dates and
times to maximize training and work potential and medical support.

e. To review and monitor the duties assigned by Colerain Township
Department of Fire and Emergency Services to ensure that they are
meeting any USMS requirements.

f. To provide the Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency
Services with appropriate certification/credentials of personnel performing
duty under this MOA. Appropriate credentials include, but are not limited
to: copy of current license or certification of specialty and service
identification.

g. That only personnel whose certification or licensure is approved by
Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services will be
authorized to perform duties under this MOA. Individuals shall be
assigned only duties for which they have received an appropriate level of
training. Coordination will be made with appropriate Colerain Township
Department of Fire and Emergency Services EMS personnel in planning
assignments.

h. That Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services has
the right to exclude any United States Marshals Service EMT DUSMs
from performing care and training in a patient care setting with its
personnel.

B. The Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services agrees:

a. That while the United States Marshals Service EMT DUSM is working his
or her clinical hours in order to maintain training and certification
requirements, all medical activities of the United States Marshals Service
EMT DUSM will be under the exclusive medical direction, supervision
and control of the Department of Health.

b. That the Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services
will retain full responsibility for patient care and treatment. Colerain
Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services will determine the
scope of work to be performed by United States Marshals EMT DUSM.



c. That United States Marshals Service will wear appropriate uniforms in
accordance with Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency
Services regulations.

d. To inform, educate, and train United States Marshals Service EMT DUSM
on its policies and procedures, as necessary and appropriate for them to
carry out their functions.

e. To report any concerns, issues and violations involving United States
Marshals EMT DUSM immediately to United State Marshals Service,
specifically, either to the Assistant Chief Deputy United States Marshal
for the District, or to the Chief Deputy United States Marshal for the
District, as appropriate.

f. To provide United States Marshals Service with the reason or cause for the
exclusion of any United States Marshals Service EMT DUSM from
functioning in a patient care setting with EMS personnel.

3. LIABILITY:

The parties hereto understand and agree that the United States Marshals Service
EMT DUSM, while performing the services with the Colerain Township Department of Fire and
Emergency Services that are authorized under the MOA, is an employee of the Federal
Government, and any United Stated Marshals Service EMT DUSM working within the scope of
this MOA will be covered for any personal or professional liability under the Federal Tort
Claims Act, 28 USC § 1346 (b) and 28 USC § 2671-2680, in the event of any claim, demand,
action or other proceeding made or brought against the Colerain Township Department of Fire
and Emergency Services, resulting from performance of such official duties with the Colerain
Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services.

4. CONFIDENTIALITY:

The United States Marshals Service and the Colerain Township Department of
Fire and Emergency Services agree that any sharing of nonpublic information pursuant to this
agreement will occur according to all applicable laws and regulations. Each party understands
that disclosure by the recipient of nonpublic information could be a violation of federal law.

S. HEALTH INFORMATION PRIVACY PRACTICE ACT (HIPAA):

The United States Marshals Service and the Colerain Township Department of
Fire and Emergency Services agree that its medical personnel are trained on HIPAA and that
appropriate sanctions against workforce members who violate privacy policies and procedures
under the Privacy Act or HIPAA will be applied.



6. REVIEWS AND REVISION:

a. Review: This MOA will be reviewed at least annually by the United
States Marshals Service and the Colerain Township Department of Fire
and Emergency Services to ensure its accuracy and currency and to
determine if the MOA should be continued, modified, or terminated.

b. Revision: This MOA may be modified upon the mutual written consent of
the United States Marshals Service and the Colerain Township
Department of Fire and Emergency Services. Revision will be processed
in the same manner as the original MOA. Minor modifications normally
will be made during annual review. When earlier change is needed,
modification action will be initiated as soon as practicable.

7. EFFECTIVE DATE & TERMINATION:

a. Effective Date: This MOA becomes effective on the date of last signature
below. The MOA will remain in effect until it is either suspended or
terminated.

b. Termination: This MOA may be terminated at any time by mutual
consent or by either party upon giving at least 60 days written notice.

8. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE:

Nothing in this MOA is intended to conflict with current laws, regulations, or
directives of the United States Marshals Service or the Colerain Township Department of Fire
and Emergency Services. If a term of this MOA is inconsistent with such authority, then that
term shall be invalid, but the remaining terms and conditions of this MOA shall remain in full
force and effect.

9. POINTS OF CONTACT (POC):
The following offices will act as liaisons between the United States Marshals
Service and the Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services for the purpose

of coordinating the implementation of the MOA:

a. The POC for the United States Marshals Service is Assistant Chief Deputy United States
Marshal Jeffrey C. Balzer at (614) 469-2898.

b. The POC for the Colerain Township Department of Fire and Emergency Services is
Captain Will Mueller at (513) 825-6143.



The undersigned approved the terms and conditions of this MOA and represent that they have
the requisite authority to enter it.

THE UNITED STATES MARSHALS SERVICE

Date:
Peter J. Tobin, United States Marshal
THE COLERAIN TOWNSHIP DEPARTMENT OF FIRE AND
EMERGENCY SERVICES
Date:

Daniel P. Meloy, Public Safety Director



NEW BUSINESS

Department:  Public Services 09/09/2014

Department Head: Kevin Schwartzhoff

1. Action
l. Parks and Services
1. Public Works
2. Information
lll. Parks and Services
a. Taste of Colerain Report

b. Recycle Day — Saturday, September 20, 2014 from 8AM to 2PM.



NEW BUSINESS

Department: Building, Planning & Zoning

Department Head: Geoffrey G. Milz, Aicp

1. Public Hearings
i. Public Hearing on the Demolition of the Condemned Structure at 3777 Poole Road
ii. Public Hearing on a Preliminary Development Plan for Snow’s Lake located at 4344 Dry Ridge.
2. Action (Include rationale)
a. Personnel
b. Policy
c. Other
i. Nuisance Abatement Resolution:

Nuisance properties, having been properly noticed, require abatement.



The Board of Trustees of Colerain Township, County of Hamilton, State of Ohio, met in
regular session at 6:00 p.m., on the 9" day of September, 2014, at the Colerain Township Administration
Building, 4200 Springdale Road, Cincinnati, Ohio 45251, with the following members present:

Mr./Ms.

Dennis P. Deters, Jeffrey F. Ritter, Melinda Rinehart

introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption:

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION DECLARING NUISANCE AND ORDERING ABATEMENT

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

Uncontrolled vegetation and/or refuse and debris were reported at the properties
listed below:
Book-Page-Parcel No.

3515 Alamosa 510-111-76
9568 Amarillo 510-51-287
9598 Amarillo 510-51-290
2800 Byrneside 510-74-41
6862 Grange 510-73-233
9040 Round Top 510-104-143
8250 Royal Heights 510-61-150
8268 Sandy 510-90-35
6741 Schuster 510-74-346
10288 September 510-113-140
9703 Stadia 510-102-126
2626 Tobermory 510-53-500
3559 Vernier 510-101-215

Ohio Revised Code Section 505.87 provides that, at least seven days prior to
providing for the abatement, control or removal of any vegetation, garbage,
refuse or debris, the Board of Trustees shall notify the owner of the land and any
holders of liens of record upon the land; and

Ohio Revised Code Section 505.87 provides that, if the Board of Trustees
determines within twelve consecutive months after a prior nuisance
determination that the same owner’s maintenance of vegetation, garbage refuse,
or other debris on the same land in the township constitutes a nuisance, at least
four days prior to providing for the abatement, control or removal of the
nuisance, the Board must send notice of the subsequent nuisance determination to
the landowner and to any lienholders of record by first class mail; and

In accordance with Ohio Revised Code Section 505.87, the Township Trustees
have the authority to contract to abate the nuisances and have the costs incurred
assessed to the property tax bills; therefore

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Colerain Township, Hamilton
County, Ohio, as follows:

1. That this Board specifically finds and hereby determines that the uncontrolled growth of vegetation
and/or the refuse and debris on each of the said properties listed above constitute a nuisance within the
meaning of Ohio Revised Code Section 505.87, and the Board directs that notice of this action be given to
owners of the said property and lienholders in the manner required by Ohio Revised Code Section 505.87;



2. That this Board hereby orders the owners of said property to remove and abate the nuisances within
seven days after notice of this order is given to the owners and lienholders of record, and within four days
after notice of this order is given to the owners and lienholders of record for properties previously
determined to be a nuisance. If said nuisances are not removed and abated by the said owners, or if no
agreement for removal and abatement is reached between the Township and the owners and lienholders of
record within four or seven days after notice is given, the Zoning Inspector shall cause the nuisances to be
removed, and the Township shall notify the County Auditor to assess such cost plus administrative
expense to the property tax bills for the said parcel, as provided in Ohio Revised Code Section 505.87;

3. That it is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Board concerning and relating to
the passage of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Board, and that all deliberations of
this Board and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were taken in meetings open to
the public, in compliance with all legal requirements including §121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code; and

4. That the Board by a majority vote hereby dispenses with the requirement that this Resolution be read
on two separate days and hereby authorizes the adoption of the Resolution upon its first reading.

5. That this Resolution shall be effective at the earliest date allowed by law.

Mr./Ms. seconded the Resolution, and the roll being called upon
the question of its adoption, the vote resulted as follows:

Vote Record:  Mr. Deters , Mr. Ritter , Ms. Rinehart
ADOPTED this 9™ day of September, 2014.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES:

Dennis P. Deters, Trustee

Jeffrey F. Ritter, Trustee

Melinda Rinehart, Trustee
ATTEST:

Heather E. Harlow
Colerain Township Fiscal Officer

Resolution prepared by and approved as to form:

Lawrence E. Barbiere (0027106)
5300 Socialville Foster Rd., Suite 200
Mason, OH 45040 (513) 583-4200
Colerain Township Law Director



AUTHENTICATION
This is to certify that this Resolution was duly passed and filed with the Colerain Township Fiscal

Officer this day of , 2014,

Heather E. Harlow
Colerain Township Fiscal Officer



COLERAIN

EST. 1794
To: Chief Bruce Smith
From: Fire Inspector James Bowman
Re: 3777 Poole Rd.

510-0092-0029-00

Date: June 9, 2014

On June 9, 2014 | visited the property located at 3777 Poole Rd in Colerain
Township to evaluate this structure for unsafe conditions. 3777 Poole Rd is vacant
and unsafe. The property and uninhabitable in its current condition and poses a fire
risk. This structure has been damaged by water in the basement and suffers from
neglect.

Colerain Township - 4200 Springdale Road « Colerain Township, Ohio 45251
www.coleraintwp.org « Phone (513) 385-7500 « Fax (513) 245-6503

Trustees: Dennis P. Deters, Melinda A. Rinehart, Jeffrey F. Ritter
Fiscal Officer: Heather E. Harlow
Administrator: James M. Rowan




Certified Mail # 7007 0220 0000 7437 7453 "’@ HAMILTON COUNTY
Receipt Requested ad PUBLIC HEALTH

PREVENT. PROMOTE. PROTECT.

Notice of Violation
Notice of Condemnation

Timothy 1. Ingram
Health Commissioner

250 William Howard Taft Road, 2nd Floor

Cincinnati, OH 45219

6/5/2014 Phone 513.946.7800

Fax 513.946.7890
JOANNE CLINE & ROBERT NIPPER

3777 POOLE RD hamiltoncountyhealth.org
CINCINNATI, OH 45251

Re: 3777 Poole Rd Colerain Township Nuisance Report #40036
Dear Mr Nipper and Ms Cline:

A site investigation was conducted on June 4, 2014 at the above referenced property in response
to a complaint received by Hamilton County General Health District. This letter details the
observations made during the investigation, existing violations of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC),
the Hamilton County District Board of Health Environmental Sanitation Regulation No. 1-67,
and corrective actions required to obtain compliance with the applicable regulations.

Observations

On June 4, 2014, the home was entered on authority granted through a search warrant, which
was obtained earlier in the day. The home was observed in poor repair and very unsanitary. The
home had a strong odor of cat urine and cat feces. Cat waste was observed in almost every room
on the floor, cabinetry, furniture, and bathroom fixtures. Many cats were observed throughout
the home (estimates put the count above 20), some with poor health. Used adult diapers were
observed accumulated in the bathroom. The basement was observed flooded with about 3 feet of
sewage water. All exposed porous surfaces in the basement (drywall, wood) were observed with
heavy possible mold growth. The sewage water was observed extending outside the home into a
back stairwell that was heading to the basement. Extension cords and a garden hose were
observed in the home; the purposes of these were unknown, but it is assumed they were
delivering water and electricity to areas of the home due to these facilities not being in good
repair. A heavy fly infestation was observed throughout the home. Water damage was observed
on the ceiling of the sunroom. The bedrooms and bathroom were observed cluttered with poor
ability to exit in the event of an emergency. A copy of the search warrant was left inside the
home. In addition, the following photographs were taken during the inspection(s):

Page 1 of 5



Animal and solid waste accumulation,
unsanitary conditions in living room (TS,
06/04/14)

Animal and solid waste accumulation,
unsanitary conditions in dining room (TS,
06/04/14)

Animal and solid waste accumulation,
unsanitary conditions in kitchen (TS,
06/04/14)

Sewage water accumulation and possible
mold accumulation in basement (TS,
06/04/14)

Violations

ORC 3707.01 states: “The board of health of a city or general health district shall abate and
remove all nuisances within its jurisdiction. It may, by order, compel the owners, agents,

assignees, occupants, or tenants of any lot, property, building, or structure to abate and remove
any nuisance therein, and prosecute such persons for neglect or refusal to obey such orders.”

You are currently in violation of Hamilton County District Board of Health Environmental

Sanitation Regulation No. 1-67:

e 4.1 - Every dwelling unit shall contain a kitchen sink which is properly connected to a

Page 2 of 5




water and sewer system approved by the Health Commissioner.

4.2 - Every dwelling unit shall contain a room which affords privacy to a person within
such room and which is equipped with a flush water closet, a lavatory and a bathtub or
shower, connected to a water and sewer system approved by the Health Commissioner.
4.6 - All plumbing shall be properly installed and maintained in good working condition,
free from defects, leaks, and obstructions.

4.7 - Every dwelling unit shall be supplied with adequate rubbish storage facilities, type
and location of which are acceptable to the Health Commissioner and shall be disposed of
in a manner acceptable to the Health Commissioner.

4.8 - Every dwelling unit shall have adequate garbage disposal facilities, type and
location of which are acceptable to the health commissioner and shall be disposed of in a
manner acceptable to the health commissioner.

4.9 - Every dwelling shall have a safe unobstructed means of egress leading to a safe and
open outdoor space at ground level.

4.15 - Exterior property areas and accessory structures shall be free from health, fire, and
accident hazards, and vermin, insect and rodent harborage and conditions which might
create a nuisance.

4.16 - The interior of every structure used for human habitation shall be free from insect,
rodent, and vermin infestation.

4.17 - Every foundation floor, ceiling, wall and roof shall be reasonably weathertight and
rodent proof. Where excessive dampness exists, corrective measures shall be required to
relieve this dampness.

4.20 - Where there is electric service available from power lines which are not more than
300 feet away from a dwelling, every habitable room of such dwelling shall contain at
least two separate floor or wall-type electric convenience outlets or one such convenience
outlet and one supplied ceiling-type electric light fixture; and every water closet
compartment, bathroom, laundry room, furnace room, and public hall shall contain at
least one supplied ceiling-or-wall-type electric light fixture. Every such outlet and fixture
shall be properly installed, shall be maintained in good and safe working condition, and
shall be connected to the source of electric power in a safe manner.

4.29 - No owner shall occupy or let to any other occupant any vacant dwelling unit unless
it is clean, sanitary, and fit for human occupancy.

4.31 - Every occupant of a dwelling or dwelling unit shall keep in a clean and sanitary
condition that part of the dwelling, dwelling unit, and premises thereof which he occupies
and controls.

Furthermore, you are currently in violation of ORC Section 3701.01 — Public Health
Nuisance.

Pursuant to ORC 3707.99 this/these violation(s) constitute a minor misdemeanor on the
first offense and a misdemeanor of the fourth degree on each subsequent offense, if you are
found guilty of the original misdemeanor.

In addition, your home is condemned and considered unfit for human habitation under the
authority of the Hamilton County General Health District. Environmental Sanitation
Regulation No. 1-67 states:

Page 3 of 5



6.1 Any dwelling or dwelling unit which shall be found to have any of the following defects
shall be condemned as unfit for human habitation and shall be so designated and placarded
by the health commissioner.

(a) One which is so damaged, decayed, dilapidated, insanitary, unsafe, or vermin infested
that it creates a serious hazard to the health or safety of the occupants or of the public.

(b) One that lacks illumination, ventilation or sanitation facilities adequate to protect the
health or safety of the occupants or of the public.

(c) One which because of its general condition or location is insanitary, or otherwise
dangerous to the health or safety of the occupants or of the public.

Required Corrective Action

As the owner of the property, you are responsible for maintaining the property in a clean and
sanitary condition. You must take the following actions:

1. Remove all garbage and animal waste from the home. All garbage and waste shall be
disposed of in an approved manner. Rooms shall be uncluttered and sanitary.

2. Allflooring in the home (such as carpet, wood, or tile) shall be removed. The subfloor shall
be treated and sealed to abate animal waste odors. There shall be no animal waste odors
present in the home.

3. All drywall and/or plaster throughout the home shall be removed. If the framing of the home
cannot be adequately sealed to abate animal waste odors, it shall be removed. There shall
be no animal waste odors present in the home.

4. All waste and debris removed from home shall not cause a nuisance to the neighboring
properties. Waste stored outdoors shall be stored to minimize odors.

5. Ensure any water leaks from the roof (such as in the sunroom) are fixed.

6. Ensure electrical system is in good repair and all outlets and switches are working properly.
Ensure any permits are obtained and inspections are passed to complete this work.

7. All plumbing (water supply and waste lines) shall be fixed and in good working order. If
permits are required to fix the issues, ensure those permits are obtained and inspections are
passed.

8. All sewage shall be conveyed and treated in an approved manner. The septic system shall be
functioning in good repaired and approved by Hamilton County Public Health’s Water
Quality Division.

9. Remove all standing water from the basement in an approved manner. Ensure basement
water is sent to be treated by an approved sewage treatment system (i.e. water shall be
hauled from the site and treated).

10. Remove all drywall and framing in the basement. Ensure any support beams/structures in
the basement are in good repair and still capable of adequately supporting the structure.

11. Clean and sanitize all fixtures, cabinetry, and equipment in the home. If the listed items
cannot be cleaned to sight and touch, the items shall be removed from the home and disposed
of in an approved manner.

12. While cats and dogs are not permitted in the home while it is condemned, any future pets
shall have adequate pet waste accumulation areas. Litter boxes shall be cleaned regularly

Page 4 of 5



and animal waste shall be removed from the home and disposed of in an approved manner
(such as through weekly garbage service). There shall be at least 1 litter box per cat in the
home.

13. If home is to be demolished, it shall be done with all appropriate permits and as to not create
a nuisance. If home is demolished, the septic system shall be properly abandoned with all
permits obtained from Hamilton County Public Health.

The above actions must be completed before the home is occupied. Failure to do so may
result in referral of this case to the Environmental Division at the Office of the Hamilton
County Prosecuting Attorney.

A re-inspection of the property by the Environmental Health Division of Hamilton County
Public Health will be conducted at the request of the property owners to ensure corrective actions
have been made to remedy the situation. In addition, continued surveillance of the property will
be conducted to verify compliance.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concerns at (513) 946-7839.

Sincerely,

Scott Puthoff, RS
Supervisor
Environmental Health Division

CC: Tim Ingram, Health Commissioner
Nee Fong Chin, Chief Assistant Prosecuting Attorney, Hamilton County
Greg Kesterman, Assistant Health Commissioner
Jeremy Hessel, Environmental Health Director
Greg Cassiere, Water Quality Supervisor
Geoff Milz, Director of Building, Planning, & Zoning, Colerain Township
Mark Denney, Chief of Police, Colerain Township
G. Bruce Smith, Fire Chief, Colerain Township
Mike Retzlaff, Director of Operations, SPCA Cincinnati

Page 5 of 5



o

COLERAIN

EST. 1794

DEPARTMENT OF
PLANNING & ZONING
4200 SPRINGDALE ROAD

STAFF REPORT: PRELIMINARY
DEVELOPMENT PLAN
CASE #: ZA 2014-0003
SNOW'S LAKE
SEPTEMBER 9, 2014

I Tt L o PREPARED BY: ~ GEOFFREY G. MILZ, AICP

PROJECT
SUMMARY:

PROJECT HISTORY:

CONFORMANCE
WITH
COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN:

CONFORMANCE
WITH LAND USE
PLAN:

The applicant proposes to redevelop the subject property to allow for a lake-front restaurant.

The subject property was dilapidated and condemned by the Hamilton County Health Department. The
structures were ordered demolished by the Colerain Township Trustees. The former owner, as part of
bankruptcy proceedings, sold the property to Mr. & Mrs. Fehring. Since purchasing the property, the
Fehring’s have demolished the building, graded the site and begun to reclaim the lakefront with rip-rap
and stone.

On July 15, 2014 the Colerain Township Zoning Commission voted 5-0 to recommend approval of the
Preliminary Development plan with the conditions listed in the recommendation section below.

The subject property is located in Character Area 4: Pebble Creek/Dry Ridge of the Colerain Township
Comprehensive Plan.

The Comprehensive Plan’s vision for the area is that “Pebble Creek/Dry Ridge will be the terminus for
much of the nonresidential growth along Colerain Avenue. Expansion of new high-density residential de-
velopment will also be limited because of the prevalence of steep slopes on the western side of this area and
the overall lack of access to major roadways. The focus of new development will be single-family detached
housing on large lots or clustered development that will preserve an extensive amount of greenspace”

In the comprehensive plan, this property is located at the nexus of two land use areas: “Commercial Cor-
ridor” and “Suburban Neighborhood”. The property has been in use as a restaurant, tavern and pay lake
for many years. It has been a non-conforming use since at least 2006 when the new zoning resolution was
adopted. 1believe that limiting commercial development at the entrance to the Donauschwaben Club is

a prudent choice and the proposed development is in keeping with the intent of the comprehensive plan
especially in this specific instance given the history of the parcel.

The land use plan has identified this parcel as “transitional mixed use” which is described as “Detached or
attached housing, low intensity office (such as conversion of single family residence) and related compat-
ible uses (excluding retail and industrial) that provide a transition between residential uses and other types
of development. Typically 1 and 2 story structures with scale, massing, intensity, layout and specifications
compatible with site constraints and character of surrounding residential development.”

The use proposed is a restaurant which is compatible with the surrounding uses including the social club,
office and residential uses. Locally-owned, neighborhood restaurants are often considered an asset to com-
munities, and an amenity to neighborhoods. The way the site plan is proposed, it provides a buffer to the
homes located on Raeanne and, considering the size of the parcel (10.5 acres), represents a relatively low
intensity use.



OTHER AGENCY Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission
REPORTS: The Regional Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve the project with the following conditions:

1. That the preservation of a wooded area of at least 15%of the total lot area shall be dedicated as common
openspace in accordance with Table 9-2 of the Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.

2. That a photomettic plan shall be submitted showing compliance with Section 12.9.4 of the Colerain
Township Zoning Resolution

3. That the number of parking spaces shall comply with the requirements of Table 13-1 of the Colerain
Township Zoning Resolution.

4. That a site plan shall be submitted showing compliance with required wheel stops or continuous curbs as
requitred in Atticle 13 of the Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.

5. That the site shall be restricted to one access dtive way off Dry Ridge Road and that its location shall
follow a separation of 50 feet from existing intersections as required in Section 13.4.1(F) of the Colerain
Township Zoning Resolution

6. That sidewalks and walkway connections shall be installed as required in Section 13.4.2 of the Colerain
Township Zoning Resolution.

7. That a streetscape buffer width, tree species, and landscaping shall comply with Section 14.5.1 of the
Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.

8. 'That a 30 foot buffer shall be installed along the portion of the western property line adjacent to areas of
improvement in accordance with the requirements of section 14.5.2 of the Colerain Township Zoning
Resolution

9. That landscaped islands shall be installed in compliance with Section 14.6.2 of the Colerain Township
Zoning Resolution

10. ‘'That any signage planned shall comply with Article 15 of the Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.

11. That a vegetative buffer including 6 canopy or evergreen trees shall be installed in areas that separate the
north edge of the site’s parking lot from Snow’s Lake

Hamilton County Stormwater & Infrastructure

1. See attached letter

Colerain Township Fire Department

1. No concerns

Hamilton County GIS

1. No response

Hamilton County Soil & Water Conservation District

1. The District has no objection to the proposed development plan however it is expected that the project
would require an earthwork permit.

ODOT

1. No response

Hamilton County Engineet

1. No landscaping, screening or obstructions shall be permitted in the public right-of-way.

2. 'The owner must dedicate enough property to create a right-of-way in fee which shall have a minimum
width of forty feet from the center line along the Dry Ridge Road frontage in accordance with the Ham-
ilton County Throughfare Plan.

3. Grading within the ROW must conform to the most appropriate Hamilton County typical section.
Any grading plan having an effect on the public ROW must be reviewed an approved by the Hamilton
County Engineer’s Office. ROW clearing and grading must occur during the initial phase of construction
to facilitate utility relocation operations

4. Locations of dtiveways and movements from said locations shall be consistent with the previously ap-
proved Hamilton County Access Management Permit for this site

Mettopolitan Sewer District

1. The township has not received evidence that the project has been given conditional availability of sewer
approval



DISCUSSION:

Per Section 4.5.3 (A), seven criteria should be satisfied before the approval of a PDP:

1.

The PD District and preliminary development plan are consis-
tent with the adopted Colerain Township Land Use Plan and
Colerain Township Comprehensive Plan.

See discussion above.

The proposed uses will have a beneficial effect on the com-
munity.

Locally-owned, neighborhood res-
taurants are often considered an asset
to communities, and an amenity to
neighborhoods.

The internal streets and primary and secondaty roads that are
proposed propetly interconnect with the surrounding existing
road network.

No public roads are proposed.

'The site will be accessible from public roads that are generally
adequate to carry the traffic that will be imposed upon them
by the proposed development and the streets and driveways on
the site will be adequate to serve the residents or occupants of
the proposed development.

The property is located on a county
highway. Hamilton County Engi-
neet’s Office recommended additional
dedication of right-of-way and that
additional ROW is shown on the site
plan.

The minimum common open space areas have been designated
and shall be duly transferred to a legally established homeown-
ers association, where applicable, or have been dedicated to,
and accepted by, Colerain Township or another public or quasi-
public agency as provided in §9.3.7.

There 1s no proposal for the dedication
of common open space. This must be
resolved by designating at least 15% or
1.575 acres as openspace on the prop-
erty before FDP approval and shown
on a revised copy of the Preliminary
Development Plan. An easement must
be recorded per §9.3.7.

The preliminary development plan is consistent with the intent
and purpose of the Zoning Resolution and in particular the
furtherance of the purpose of the PD District as set forth in
§9.3.1.

The implementation of the proposed
Preliminary Development Plan with
the proposed conditions will result in a
high quality development that provides
a community amenity

‘The preliminary development plan has been transmitted to all
other agencies and departments charged with responsibility of
review.

The plan has been transmitted to all
appropmate agencies for review.

The Final Development Plan will address landscaping, lighting, signage, parking, circulation and other design
considerations. It is important to note that the Preliminary Development Plan addresses building location, uses,
density, intensity, yard requirements, and area and frontage requirements.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the PDP with the following conditions:

Conditions;

‘The applicant shall designate at least 15% or 1.575 acres as Common Open Space on the property before
FDP approval and submit a revised copy of the Preliminary Development Plan. An easement must be

recorded per §9.3.7.

‘That the number of parking spaces shall comply wit the requirements of Table 13-1 of the Colerain Town-

ship Zoning Resolution.

That a site plan shall be submitted showing compliance with required wheel stops or continuous curbs as
required in Article 13 of the Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.

That sidewalks and walkway connections shall be installed as required in Section 13.4.2 of the Colerain

Township Zoning Resolution.

That a streetscape buffer width, tree species, and landscaping shall comply with Section 14.5.1 of the Col-

erain Township Zoning Resolution.




That landscaped islands shall be installed in compliance with Section 14.6.2 of the Colerain Township
Zoning Resolution

That any signage planned shall comply with Article 15 of the Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.

‘That a vegetative buffer be included in areas that separate the north edge of the site’s parking lot from
Snow’s Lake. The vegetative buffer shall include an appropriate combination of canopy trees, evergreen
trees, shrubs and other landscaping.



The Board of Trustees of Colerain Township, County of Hamilton, State of Ohio, met in
regular session at 6:00 p.m., on the 9% September, 2014, at the Colerain Township Administration
Building, 4200 Springdale Road, Cincinnati, Ohio, 45251, with the following members present:

Dennis P. Deters, Jeffrey F. Ritter, Melinda Rinehart

Mr./Ms. introduced the following resolution and
moved its adoption:

RESOLUTION NO. -14
Case No. ZA2014-03
SNOW’S LAKE TAVERN
Approval of a Zone Map Amendment and Preliminary Development Plan
Parcel 510-182-68 — PD- Planned District-Business

WHEREAS, the applicant, Mark Fehring, proposes a Zone Map Amendment and Preliminary
Development Plan; and,

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission heard the case, and on
July 3, 2014 voted unanimously to recommend approval of the requested Zone Map Amendment and
Preliminary Development Plan; and,

WHEREAS, the Colerain Township Zoning Commission conducted its public hearing on the case
on July 15, 2014, and after consideration of the recommendation of the Regional Planning Commission,
and all public comments, exhibits, and other materials submitted, voted 5-0 to recommend approval of
the application for a Zone Map Amendment and Preliminary Development Plan with conditions and
variances; and,

WHEREAS, the Colerain Township Board of Trustees conducted its public hearing on the case
on September 9, 2014, and after consideration of the recommendation of the Regional Planning
Commission, the recommendation of the Zoning Commission, and all public comments, exhibits, and
other materials submitted, voted to approve the application for a Zone Map Amendment and
Preliminary Development Plan with conditions as set forth in this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees accepts the
recommendation of the Colerain Township Zoning Commission for a Zone Map Amendment and
Preliminary Development Plan, and that the Board of Trustees does hereby approve the request for parcel
510-182-68, designated as PD- Planned District-Business, for the reason that the Zone Map Amendment
and Preliminary Development Plan would be in the best interest of the Township and the health, safety,
morals and welfare of the public, is consistent with the Colerain Township Comprehensive Plan
previously adopted by the Township, and is in keeping with good land use planning; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Final Development Plan shall be subject to the
conditions set forth below:

1. Final Development Plan

1.1 The Zoning Resolution, required site plans or drawings, terms, covenants and conditions of
approval which are depicted or noted on the Final Development Plan or contained in this
Resolution are to be considered complimentary and what is required by one shall be as
binding as if required by all.



1.2 No Final Development Plan shall be approved by the Colerain Township Zoning
Commission before:

A. detailed plans for grading, landscaping (indicating quality/quantity), exterior
lighting and freestanding signs are submitted;

B. all other “Requirements for Submission” of the Final Development Plans have been
satisfactorily met;

C. the Final Development Plan complies with the intent of this Resolution, the Zoning
Resolution, the Preliminary Development Plan and all other complementary
regulations and documents;

D. the Final Development Plan complies with site plan recommendations of applicable
development review agencies;

E. the Final Development Plan complies with the following additional requirements or
standards:

Conditions:

1. The applicant shall designate at least 15% or 1.575 acres as Common Open Space on
the property before FDP approval and submit a revised copy of the Preliminary
Development Plan. An easement must be recorded per §9.3.7.

2. That the number of parking spaces shall comply with the requirements of Table 13-1 of
the Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.

3. That a site plan shall be submitted showing compliance with required wheel stops or
continuous curbs as required in Article 13 of the Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.
4. That sidewalks and walkway connections shall be installed as required in Section
13.4.2 of the Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.

5. That a streetscape buffer width, tree species, and landscaping shall comply with
Section 14.5.1 of the Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.

6. That landscaped islands shall be installed in compliance with Section 14.6.2 of the
Colerain Township Zoning Resolution.

7. That any signage planned shall comply with Article 15 of the Colerain Township
Zoning Resolution.

8. That a vegetative buffer be included in areas that separate the north edge of the site’s
parking lot from Snow’s Lake. The vegetative buffer shall include an appropriate
combination of canopy trees, evergreen trees, shrubs and other landscaping.

Construction Permits

2.1 No Zoning Certificate shall be issued by the Office of the Zoning Administrator before:

A. A Final Development Plan in compliance with Section 1 above, has been received
and approved by the Colerain Township Zoning Commission, and

B. Construction documents submitted for permit are fully coordinated and consistent
with the approved Final Development Plan.

2.2 No building permit for actual construction shall be issued by the Department of the
Building Commissioner before a Zoning Certificate is received from the Colerain
Township Zoning Administrator.



3. Maintenance of Improvements

3.1 All aspects of this development including property improvements, landscaping, ground cover, etc.
as required in the specifications, covenants, conditions, requirements, and limitations of the Final
Development Plan and/or contained in this Resolution shall be continually maintained by the
owner of the property until the development ceases to exist. Enforcement shall be by the Office of
the Colerain Township Zoning Inspector, with all discrepancies being considered Zoning
Resolution violations.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Colerain Township, Hamilton
County, Ohio, as follows:

1. That a certified copy of this Resolution be directed by the Fiscal Officer of Colerain Township to
the Hamilton County Recorder and the Colerain Township Zoning Inspector.

2 That it is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Board concerning and
relating to the passage of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Board, and that all
deliberations of this Board and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were taken in
meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements including §121.22 of the Ohio
Revised Code; and

3. That the Board by a majority vote hereby dispenses with the requirement that this Resolution be
read on two separate days and hereby authorizes the adoption of the Resolution upon its first reading; and

4. That this Resolution shall be effective at the earliest date allowed by law.
Mr./Ms. seconded the Resolution, and the roll being called upon the
question of its adoption, the vote resulted as follows:

Vote Record: Mr. Deters ___, Mr. Ritter ___, Ms. Rinehart ___
ADOPTED this ___ day of September, 2014.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES:

Dennis P. Deters, Trustee

Jeffrey F. Ritter, Trustee

Melinda Rinehart, Trustee

Attest:

Heather E. Harlow
Colerain Township Fiscal Officer



Resolution approved as to form:

Lawrence E. Barbiere (0027106)
5300 Socialville Foster Rd., Suite 200
Mason, OH 45040

(513) 583-4200

Colerain Township Law Director

AUTHENTICATION
This is to certify that this Resolution was duly passed and filed with the Colerain Township Fiscal Officer

this__ day of ,2014.

Heather E. Harlow
Colerain Township Fiscal Officer



NEW BUSINESS

#

Department: Administration
Department Head: James Rowan & Frank Birkenhauer
Action:

Approval of Employment Agreement

Recommend approval of Employment Agreement with Frank Birkenhauer as Assistant
Administrator/Director of Economic Development effective October 26, 2014 through
December 31, 2017.

Approval of Contract Addendum with Cincinnati Bell Technology Solutions

Authorize Administrator to enter into contract addendum with Cincinnati Bell
Technology Solutions for a period of 36 months for the purpose of upgrading phone
services. The increase associated with the contract addendum shall not exceed $50,000
and is subject to final approval by legal counsel.

Approval of Interfund Transfers

Recommend approval of the Interfund Transfers as presented.

Approval of HR Document Management Solution

Recommend approval of the HR Document Solution as presented.



@ Cincinnati Bell”

ADDENDUM #02640025

TO
SERVICES AGREEMENT #56843.3
BETWEEN
CINCINNATI BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY LLC & COLERAIN TOWNSHIP

This Addendum is made and entered into between Cincinnati Bell Telephone Company LLC, an Ohio
limited liability company, on behalf of its’ affiliates and subsidiaries, with its principal place of business at 221 East
Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 (collectively “Cincinnati Bell’) and Colerain Township, a(n)
company, having its principal place of business at 4200 Springdale Road, Cincinnati, OH 45251 (“Customer”). This
Addendum shall be attached to and is hereby incorporated by reference into the Services Agreement #56843.3
executed on or about June 3, 2009 (the “Agreement’) and all Addendums thereto executed by Cincinnati Bell and
Customer.

WHEREAS, Cincinnati Bell and Customer desire to amend the Agreement in the manner and on the terms set
forth herein;

WHEREAS, for the purposes of and for the services described in this Addendum only, the following terms and
conditions are in addition to those of the Agreement and apply;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby

acknowledged, Cincinnati Bell and Customer hereby agree that the Agreement shall be and hereby is amended as
follows:

1. Upon execution of this Addendum #02640025, Customer's monthly recurring cost shall increase from $4020.85
to $5,233.10 for the duration of the Renewal Term (as defined in Section 2 below).

2. The Agreement, Section A (“Service Pricing”) is hereby DELETED in its entirety and shall be REPLACED by the

following:
Qty | Units Description Term Per Unit Monthly Per Unit One-
Monthly One-time time
Service Address: 11474 Colerain Ave., Cincinnati, OH 45252
2 Each | 1FB - Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $50.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Starter Kit without T1 -
1 Each | (5 to 18 user) includes 1500 min 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
LD - 3 cents overage rate
Emerge Starter Kit - (5to 18
1 Each | user) QoS Router - 24 Port 36 Months $20.00 $20.00 $0.00 $0.00
switch
Emerge Premium User -
5 Each wiVoicemail 36 Months $8.65 $43.25 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Polycom VVX 310 IP
5 Each Phone Rental 36 Months $8.00 $40.00 $0.00 $0.00
Service Address: 11865 Colerain Ave., Cincinnati, OH 45252
1 Each | 1FB - Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00
1 | Eacn | CBEthemet Services 10MoPS | 36 months | $250.00 | $25000 | $0.00 | $0.00
CB Ethernet Services
1 Each PVC/VLAN 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Starter Kit without T1 -
1 Each | (5to 18 user) includes 1500 min 36 Months $15.00 $15.00 $0.00 $0.00
LD - 3 cents overage rate
Confidential - Colerain Township Page 1 of 9

Services Agreement #56843.3 — Addendum #02640025



Emerge Starter Kit - (6to 18
1 Each | user) QoS Router - 24 Port 36 Months $20.00 $20.00 $0.00 $0.00
switch
5 | Each | Emerge Premium User - 36 Months $8.65 $43.25 $0.00 | $0.00
w/Voicemail
Emerge Polycom VVX 310 IP
5 Each Phone Rental 36 Months $8.00 $40.00 $0.00 $0.00
1 Each | Platinum 10Mb 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CB Ethernet Services 10 Mbps
1 Each Additional 36 Months $50.00 $50.00 $0.00 $0.00
CB Ethernet Services eVolve,
1 Each voice PVC/VLAN 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Service Address: 9541 Colerain Ave., Cincinnati, OH 45251
1 Each | ZoomTown w/ Dynamic IP 36 Months $45.00 $45.00 $0.00 $0.00
1 Each | 1FB - Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00
Service Address: 9521 Colerain Ave., Cincinnati, OH 45251
1 | Each | Fioptics HSI-1OMB2Mbwith 1| 35 \ionths | $99.95 |  $99.95 $0.00 | $0.00
Static IP
Service Address: 3360 W Galbraith Rd., Cincinnati, OH 45239
2 Each | 1FB — Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $50.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Starter Kit without T1 -
1 Each | (5 to 18 user) includes 1500 min 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
LD - 3 cents overage rate
Emerge Starter Kit - (5to 18
1 Each | user) QoS Router - 24 Port 36 Months $20.00 $20.00 $0.00 $0.00
switch
Emerge Premium User -
8 Each wiVoicemail 36 Months $8.65 $69.20 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Polycom VVX 310 IP
8 Each Phone Rental 36 Months $8.00 $64.00 $0.00 $0.00
Service Address: 6000 Thompson Rd., Cincinnati, OH 45247
1 Each | 1FB — Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Starter Kit without T1 -
1 Each | (5 to 18 user) includes 1500 min 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
LD - 3 cents overage rate
Emerge Starter Kit - (5to 18
1 Each | user) QoS Router - 24 Port 36 Months $20.00 $20.00 $0.00 $0.00
switch
Emerge Premium User -
6 Each wiVoicemail 36 Months $8.65 $51.90 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Polycom VVX 310 IP
6 Each Phone Rental 36 Months $8.00 $48.00 $0.00 $0.00
Service Address: 4160 Springdale Rd., Cincinnati, OH 45251
1 Each | 1FB — Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Starter Kit without T1 -
1 Each | (5to 18 user) includes 1500 min 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
LD - 3 cents overage rate
Emerge Starter Kit - (5t0 18
1 Each | user) QoS Router - 24 Port 36 Months $20.00 $20.00 $0.00 $0.00
switch
Emerge Premium User -
26 | Each wiVoicemail 36 Months $8.65 $224.90 $0.00 $0.00
Confidential - Colerain Township Page 2 of 9

Services Agreement #56843.3 — Addendum #02640025




Emerge Polycom VVX 310 IP
26 | Each Phone Rental 36 Months $8.00 $208.00 $0.00 $0.00
Service Address: 4160 Springdale Rd., Cincinnati, OH 45251
4 Each | 1FB - Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $100.00 $0.00 $0.00
FUSE Dedicated - 100 MB over
1 Each CB Ethernet Services 36 Months $1,000.00 | $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Starter Kit without T1 -
1 Each | (37 or more user) includes 1500 36 Months $15.00 $15.00 $0.00 $0.00
min LD - 3 cents overage rate
Emerge Starter Kit - (37 or more
1 Each | user) QoS Router - (2 or more) 36 Months $40.00 $40.00 $0.00 $0.00
24 Port switches
Emerge Premium User -
41 Each wiVoicemail 36 Months $8.65 $354.65 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Polycom VVX 310 IP
43 | Each Phone Rental 36 Months $8.00 $344.00 $0.00 $0.00
80 | Each | EMerge Addiional Voicemall 36 Months $400 | $32000 | $0.00 | $0.00
Emerge Receptionist Software
3 Each for over 30 Employees 36 Months $14.95 $44.85 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Overhead Paging
1 Each | Integration - includes ATA and 36 Months $12.95 $12.95 $0.00 $0.00
basic user
Emerge Teleworker User -
4 Each Premium User w/Voicemail 36 Months $12.00 $48.00 $0.00 $0.00
CB Ethernet Services 100 Mbps
1 Each Additional 36 Months $160.00 $160.00 $0.00 $0.00
CB Ethernet Services- 100M
1 Each | 5iotinum QoS 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CB Ethernet Services eVolve,
1 Bach | - PVCVLAN 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1| Each | OB Ethemet Services 100Mbps | a6 months | $450.00 | $45000 | $0.00 | $0.00
CB Ethernet Services IP
1 Each | SV eA/LAN 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CB Ethernet Services 10 Mbps
1 Each Additional 36 Months $50.00 $50.00 $0.00 $0.00
CB Ethernet Services
1 Each PVC/VLAN 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Service Address: 4725 Springdale Rd., Cincinnati, OH 45251
1 Each | 1FB - Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Starter Kit without T1 -
1 Each | (5 to 18 user) includes 1500 min 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
LD - 3 cents overage rate
Emerge Starter Kit- (5to 18
1 Each | user) QoS Router - 24 Port 36 Months $20.00 $20.00 $0.00 $0.00
switch
Emerge Premium User -
6 Each wiVoicemail 36 Months $8.65 $51.90 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Polycom VVX 310 IP
6 Each Phone Rental 36 Months $8.00 $48.00 $0.00 $0.00
Service Address: 7560 Colerain Ave., Cincinnati, OH 45239
1 | Each | Fioptics HSI-3OMb/TOMb with | 36 \ionths | $99.95 |  $99.95 $0.00 | $0.00
1 Static IP
1 Each | 1FB - Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00
Confidential - Colerain Township Page 3 of 9

Services Agreement #56843.3 — Addendum #02640025




Service Address: 3251 Springdale Rd., Cincinnati, OH 45251

1 Each | 1FB - Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Starter Kit without T1 -
1 Each | (5 to 18 user) includes 1500 min 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

LD - 3 cents overage rate
Emerge Starter Kit - (5 to 18

1 Each | user) QoS Router - 24 Port 36 Months $20.00 $20.00 $0.00 $0.00
switch
Emerge Premium User -
13 | Each wiVoicemail 36 Months $8.65 $112.45 $0.00 $0.00
13 | Each | EMerge Polycom VWX 3101P 36 Months $800 | $10400 | $0.00 | $0.00

Phone Rental
Service Address: 2850 W Kemper Rd., Cincinnati, OH 45251

1 Each | 1FB - Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emerge Starter Kit without T1 -
1 Each | (5 to 18 user) includes 1500 min 36 Months $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

LD - 3 cents overage rate
Emerge Starter Kit - (5 to 18

1 Each | user) QoS Router - 24 Port 36 Months $20.00 $20.00 $0.00 $0.00
switch
Emerge Premium User -
6 Each wiVoicemail 36 Months $8.65 $51.90 $0.00 $0.00
6 | Each | Emerge Polycom VWX 3101P 36 Months $8.00 $48.00 $0.00 | $0.00

Phone Rental
Service Address: 4300 Springdale Rd., Cincinnati, OH 45251

1 Each | 1FB - Renewal 36 Months $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL $5,233.10 $0.00

NOTES:

e Term - Thirty-Six (36) Months, commencing upon installation of all services shown above {the
“Renewal Term”).

3. The Agreement is hereby amended to INCORPORATE the “evolve eMerge — Terms and Conditions
Supplement” attached hereto.

4. Except to the extent modified herein, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement, and all Addendums
thereto, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Addendum as of the date last signed below (‘Effective
Date”), and the persons signing represent that they are duly authorized to execute this Addendum.

COLERAIN TOWNSHIP CINCINNATI BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY LLC
By: By:
(Signature) (Signature)
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
Confidential - Colerain Township Page 4 of 9

Services Agreement #56843.3 — Addendum #02640025



evolve eMerge - TERMS AND CONDITIONS SUPPLEMENT

Cincinnati Bell Any Distance Inc. (‘CBAD”) agrees to provide and Customer agrees to purchase the evolve
eMerge Service, which includes all the products listed on the Services Agreement (hereinafter “Service”) and
described in one or more Appendices attached (as applicable) and incorporated herein.

Appendix A — evolve eMerge Service and SLA Supplement

The rates on the attached Services Agreement are based on available facilities through the Local Exchange
Carrier's (“LEC”) unbundled network element (“UNE”) cost structure. In the event the LEC does not have
UNE facilities available at the Central Office supporting the Customer’s location, CBAD reserves the right to
modify the Services Agreement rates to meet the higher cost of Special Access via the execution of a new
Services Agreement or Addendum by the parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Customer may opt to
terminate the evolve eMerge Service effected by such a rate change without termination penalty upon written
notice to CBAD.

This Agreement is subject to CBAD’s credit approval of Customer and will not become effective until executed
by both Parties. That notwithstanding, any Services offered hereunder which are accepted by Customer prior
to the Effective Date of this Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

A. TERM

This Agreement shall govern the Services set forth in the evolve eMerge Service and SLA Supplement
(Appendix A) from the Service Activation Date (as noted in Section B below) for the period of time specified on
the Services Agreement (“Initial Term”). Upon expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement shall automatically
renew at the current contract rate for a twelve (12) meonth period (“Renewal Term”) unless either Party
terminates this Agreement by providing thirty (30) days advance written notice of termination to the other Party
prior to the expiration of the then-current Term. Hereinafter “Term” shall mean collectively Initial and/or
Renewal Term. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CBAD reserves the right to adjust rates at any time after the
expiration of the Initial Term upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to Customer, during which time Customer
shall have the right to terminate the Agreement, without incurring termination charges, if Customer does not
agree to stated rate adjustment. In the event Customer does not provide written notice of termination during
the sixty (60) day period, Customer shall be deemed to accept the rate adjustment.

B. BILLING

CBAD shall send notice to Customer that Service is ready for commercial use (“Service Activation Date”) and
billing will commence within five (5) business days thereafter. Pricing herein does not include charges for
taxes, fees, and surcharges, which shall be included in the invoices. CBAD reserves the right to examine
Customer’s credit record and to require a deposit or other security, including payment by credit card, before it
provides or continues Service to Customer. CBAD will determine, at its discretion, how Customer's deposit or
other security will be allocated to satisfy outstanding amounts owed by Customer to CBAD. By subscribing to
the Service, Customer authorizes CBAD to investigate Customer’s creditworthiness and agrees, from time to
time, to provide appropriate authorizations and financial information as CBAD may reasonably request for this
purpose.

C. SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT

The Service Level Agreement (“SLA”) is made a part of this Agreement is set forth on Appendix A.

D. MAINTENANCE CHARGES AND ANCILLARY FEES

CBAD shall maintain its network; however, if Customer requests CBAD to send maintenance personnel to

perform troubleshooting and it is determined that the maintenance required was caused by Customer or
Customer’s equipment, additional charges will apply and be billed to Customer.

E. DISCLAIMER OF EMERGENCY 9-1-1 SERVICES.

CUSTOMER IS HEREBY ADVISED THAT THE SERVICE, INCLUDING EMERGENCY 9-1-1 SERVICE, WILL
NOT FUNCTION IF THE CUSTOMER HANDSET OR EQUIPMENT IS MOVED FROM THE PHYSICAL
ADDRESS/REGISTERED LOCATION WERE SERVICE WAS INSTALLED BY CBAD. CUSTOMER IS

Confidential - Colerain Township Page 5 of 9
Services Agreement #56843.3 — Addendum #02640025



HEREBY ADVISED THAT EMERGENCY 9-1-1 SERVICE WILL NOT FUNCTION OR BE AVAILABLE TO
CUSTOMER WITH THE LOSS OF ELECTRICAL POWER OR IF THE FUSE INTERNET ACCESS
CONNECTION IS NOT OPERATIONAL. DEPENDING ON CUSTOMER'S LOCATION, THE TYPE OF
HANDSETS AND OTHER EQUIPMENT CUSTOMER USES, THE TYPE OF EQUIPMENT USED BY THE
PUBLIC SAFETY ACCESS POINT OR OTHER APPLICABLE EMERGENCY SERVICES PROVIDER, AND
THE CIRCUMSTANCES AND CONDITIONS OF A PARTICULAR CALL, CUSTOMER MAY NOT BE
CONNECTED OR CUSTOMER’S PHONE NUMBER AND/OR LOCATION MAY NOT BE IDENTIFIABLE TO
EMERGENCY SERVICE PROVIDERS. CUSTOMER SIGNATURE BELOW TO THIS CONTRACT WILL
SERVE AS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT THAT CBAD HAS ADVISED CUSTOMER OF THESE LIMITATIONS
AND THAT CUSTOMER ACCEPTS THE SERVICES WITH THESE LIMITATIONS. IN ADDITION TO THE
LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY CONTAINED IN FEDERAL LAW AND RELEVANT STATE STATUTES, CBAD
SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES OR OTHER RELIEF ARISING OUT OF DELAYS, MISTAKES,
OMISSIONS, INTERRUPTIONS, MISROUTING OF 911 CALLS, ERRORS OR DEFECTS IN
PERFORMANCE (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROBLEMS WITH OR OUTAGES OF EQUIPMENT)
HEREUNDER.

F. MOVE / CHANGE OF SERVICE LOCATION

If a Customer moves their business to another location within CBAD's operating territory (Cincinnati/Northern
Ky/Dayton markets only) prior to the expiration of the then-current Term, the Agreement will move with them,
however, the Customer will pay for all standard instailation and Service charges associated with moving the
Service (‘Move Charges”). The Agreement will continue with the original expiration date and rate structure.
Termination charges will apply if Customer terminates any of the existing Service. In the event the Customer is
in the Agreement for more than twelve (12) months prior to requested move, Customer may resign a new
thirty-six (36) month term and CBAD will waive the associated Move Charges.

G. TERMINATION CHARGES

Either Party may terminate this Agreement or disconnect, in whole or in part, the Service(s) hereunder at any
time and without cause upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other Party. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if Customer terminates any Service for convenience or for reasons other than CBAD's breach of this
Agreement prior to the end of the then-current Term, Customer shall (i) reimburse CBAD for all waived costs of
the implementation of such Service(s) and (i) pay a termination charge equal to all remaining amounts due or to
become due, including but not limited to all monthly charges for which Customer would have been responsible if
the Customer had not terminated prior to the expiration of the then-current Term.

APPENDIX A - evolve eMerge Service and SLA Supplement

1. Minimum Service Term. Service orders based on this Supplement submitted under this Agreement
will have a minimum Term as stated on the Services Agreement.

2. Definitions.

21 Internet - a Network of Global Computers as defined in 1996 running on Transmission Control
Protocol (TCP), on top of Internet Protocol Version Four (IPv4).

2.2 eMerge FUSE Internet Access - the engineering, configuration, installation, maintenance and repair

services provided by CBAD to Customer necessary to interconnect Customer's network to the eMerge FUSE
Internet Access network for passage to the Internet for data transmission as part of the Service described in
this Agreement.

2.3 Local Area Network - a network connecting computers and other peripheral equipment for data
communications over a limited geographical area, usually within a single building or among a few buildings.

3. Domestic Interstate/Intrastate Long Distance.

3.1 Domestic Interstate/Intrastate Long Distance Usage Rate. CBAD will provide domestic
inbound/outbound long distance minutes as reflected on the Services Agreement. The overage rate for
domestic inbound/outbound long distance minutes will be billed at $0.03/minute. All long distance reflected on
the Services Agreement applies only to phone lines on the CBAD evolve network.

3.2 Domestic Interstate/Intrastate Unlimited Long Distance. The Customer will have unlimited usage of
domestic outbound only long distance minutes within the continental United States. Inbound Toll Free number
long distance minutes will be billed at $0.06/minute. All unlimited long distance applies only to phone lines on
the CBAD evolve network.

Confidential - Colerain Township Page 6 of 9
Services Agreement #56843.3 — Addendum #02640025



4. International Voice Usage Rates. CBAD’s international voice service usage rates, which vary by
country, are subject to change upon thirty (30) days written notice. To view the international voice service
usage rates, please visit CincinnatiBell.com or the specified web address at:

http:/Amww.cincinnatibell.com/business/long_distance/international_rates/

5. Call Increments and Rounding. Non-calling card interstate and intrastate outbound and inbound
calls are billed in thirty (30) second increments with six (6) second additional increments thereafter.
International outbound with the exception of Mexico will be billed in thirty (30) second increments with six (6)
second additional increments thereafter. Calls to Mexico will be billed in sixty (60) second increments with
sixty (60) second additional increments thereafter. All calls are rounded up to the nearest cent.

6. Calling Card Rates. The domestic calling card rate is $0.23 per minute with a $0.69 surcharge per
call. In addition to the per minute rate and standard surcharge, calling card calls placed from coin telephones
will incur an additional $0.60 surcharge per call. Calling card calls are billed in full minute increments.
Surcharges are subject to change upon thirty (30) days written notice.

7. Automatic Dialer Devices. Customer acknowledges and agrees that use of autodialers, predictive
dialers or other devices that generate automated outbound calls in conjunction with Service and products
provided under this Agreement is strictly prohibited. CBAD may, in its sole discretion, suspend Service for
issues pertaining to network congestion due to Customer’s use of these devices, revise the pricing herein, or
terminate Service under this Agreement immediately.

8. Short Duration Call Penalty. If the percentage of the Customer’s completed calls are equal to or less
than six (6) seconds in length for any billing cycle meets or exceeds ten percent (10%), CBAD may charge an
additional $0.02 for each Short Duration Call during such billing cycle (excluding those Short Duration Calls
under the Short Duration Percentage Threshold).

9. Provision Of eMerge FUSE Internet Access.

9.1 The provisioning of eMerge FUSE Internet Access will include the maintenance and repair required
to maintain the eMerge FUSE Internet Access service in proper working order on CBAD's side of the
Demarcation Point.

9.2 eMerge FUSE Internet Access will be available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per
week, except as required to update, enhance, maintain and/or repair eMerge FUSE Internet Access. CBAD
reserves the right to perform these tasks, as needed, during the off-peak hours, normally on Sundays from
12:00 a.m. to 6:00 a.m. Downtime due to scheduled maintenance is not subject to the Repair and Response
policies in Section 15. If maintenance affects Customer, CBAD will use reasonable efforts to notify Customer
in advance.

9.3 CBAD will furnish Customer with Internet Protocol (IP) addresses within five (5) business days of
receipt of executed Agreement.

9.4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing, CBAD will provide eMerge FUSE Internet Access service for
TCP/IP based communication protocols for transmission across the Internet only.

9.5 The electrical signals of eMerge FUSE Internet Access will operate in compliance with the following
American National Standard Institute ("ANSI") or IEEE standards for Ethernet LANs operating at a Native
Mode of 10/100 Mbps, IEEE Standard 802.3 (Carrier Sense Multiple Access with Collision Detection
(CSMAJCD) Access Method and Physical Layer Specifications).

10. Customer's_Obligations.
101 Customer acknowledges billing for Service will commence when CBAD’s transport facility is
provisioned and facility channels are turned up for local Service per terms outlined in Section B of the
Supplement.
10.2 Customer will furnish, at its expense, such space, electrical power and environmental conditioning at
Customer's premises as CBAD may reasonably require in connection with performing its obligations
hereunder. Customer will permit CBAD reasonable access to Customer's premises, in accordance with
Customer's normal security procedures, in connection with providing Service hereunder.
10.3 Customer will provide, install and maintain, at its expense, all equipment and facilities necessary for
LAN interconnection on the Customer's side of the Demarcation Point. Customer shall be responsible for
insuring that the operating characteristics of such equipment and facilities are compatible with the Service
herein.
10.4 Customer will cause its electrical signals at the Demarcation Point to conform to the applicable ANSI
or |IEEE standards set forth in Section 9.5, above. Customer shall furnish any additional equipment or
facilities necessary to comply with such standards at their expense.
10.5 Without the prior written consent of CBAD, Customer will not access, or attempt to access, any
equipment or facilities furnished by CBAD in connection with this Agreement. Customer agrees to use
Internet access only for lawful purposes. Any content that CBAD in its sole discretion considers being
obscene, lewd, lascivious, filthy, excessively violent, harassing, harmful, offensive or otherwise objectionable
CBAD shall notify Customer of such and Customer shall start corrective action immediately or CBAD may
terminate the Service. Similarly, conduct by Customer that in CBAD's sole discretion restricts or inhibits any
other Internet Service Provider, subscriber, person or entity from using or enjoying this Service or any other
Confidential - Colerain Township Page 7 of 9

Services Agreement #56843.3 — Addendum #02640025




provided service will not be permitted and CBAD shall notify Customer of such and Customer shall start
corrective action immediately or CBAD may terminate the Service. Examples of such conduct include, but
are not limited to, sending of Unsoclicited Commercial Email (UCE), Unsolicited Bulk Email (UBE) or “SPAM”,
Commercial advertisements in USENET News groups not intended for that purpose, attempts to access
remote computing systems without permission, port scanning and any attempts to subvert any network
security measures of the Service or any other network. Customer will indemnify and hold harmless CBAD, its
officers, directors, employees and agents, from and against any loss or expense, of whatever nature, arising
out of any unauthorized access to any equipment or facilities furnished by CBAD in connection with this
Agreement.

10.6 Prior to requesting repair service from CBAD, Customer will use its best efforts, including but not
limited to performing reasonable diagnostic tests, to verify whether any trouble with the Service is a result of
the Customer's equipment or facilities. Customer shall be responsible for any such trouble resuiting from the
Customer's equipment or facilities. Customer will cooperate with any joint testing of Service reasonably
requested by CBAD.

10.7 Client agrees to comply with CBAD’s policies respecting the Service as provided from time to time,
or to which Customer is directed when using the Service. While using the Service, Client shall not transmit or
otherwise distribute information constituting or encouraging conduct that would constitute a criminal offense
or give rise to civil liability, or otherwise use the Service in a manner which is contrary to law or CBAD's
policies. In addition, without incurring liability, CBAD may immediately and without notice: (i) discontinue or
suspend the Services; (ii) cancel a request for Services; or (jii) temporarily block Service to a particular
authorization code, if it deems such action is necessary, either to prevent Improper Use or to protect against
fraud or the commission of suspected illegal activities, or to otherwise protect its personnel, agents, facilities
or Services.

11. Procedures Regarding Third Party Complaints. If CBAD receives a complaint that any content
provided by Customer through the use of the Service, or provided by any party using Customer’s account as
permitted by this Agreement, infringes any copyright, trademark, Service mark, or other intellectual property
right of any third party; or constitutes fraud, false advertising, or misrepresentation; or constitutes libel,
slander, or invasion of the right of privacy or publicity of any third party; or otherwise violates the terms of this
contract; CBAD reserves the right to take appropriate action including, without limitation, (i) taking down the
offending material in compliance with the Digital Millennium Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. § 512, (ii) removing or
disabling Customer’s access to the Service, and/or (jii) terminating Customer’s Subscription, with or without
prior notice to Customer.

12. Title To Equipment And Facilities. All equipment and facilities used by CBAD in providing Service
hereunder will remain the sole property of CBAD (Including the EdgeMarc Integrated Access Device, Linksys
Managed Switch(s) and IP Phones) , whether or not attached to or embedded in realty, unless otherwise
agreed to in writing by the Parties with respect to specific equipment.

13. Acceptable Use. If CBAD becomes aware, through subscriber complaints or otherwise, of any
Content that it, in its sole discretion, considers to be obscene, lewd, lascivious, excessively violent, harassing,
harmful, offensive, or otherwise objectionable, CBAD shall have the right, but not the responsibility, to
immediately remove such Content and/or to terminate Service without notice. This policy applies to any
Content made available by Customer, Customer’s clients, or generally made available through Customer
account. Customer is solely responsible for all information, communications, software, photos, video,
graphics, music, sounds, and other material and services (collectively referred to as “Content”) that is
transmitted through the Customer Account and/or make available on or through the Customer Web site or
any of the Customer’s clients web sites.

14. Suspension Or Restriction Of Service. CBAD may suspend or restrict the use of Service (i) upon
prior notification if the operations or efficiency of the Service is impaired by the use of the Account; or (ii) at
any time any amount is past due from Customer to CBAD; or (jii) at any time there has been or is any breach
of these Terms and Conditions. CBAD shall have no responsibility to notify any third party of such termination
or suspension.

15. Service Level Agreement.
15.1 The standards described herein do not include periods of non-attainment resulting in whole or in part
from one or more of the following causes:
§ Any act or omission by Customer, its contractors, agents, or any other entity over which Customer
exercises control or has the right to exercise control
Scheduled maintenance
Labor strikes
Force Majeure events
Any act or omission on the part of a third party
First month of Service for this particular service element
15.2 CBAD guarantees the availability of Customer’s voice and data network through the eMerge network,
the Public Switched Telephone Network, and to the Internet 99.9% of the time. This availability will be
determined by verification that Customer’s network is “reachable” 99.9% of the times checked from the
Confidential - Colerain Township Page 8 of 9

Services Agreement #56843.3 — Addendum #02640025

(7727728776277 27704



furthest point in the eMerge network. For each 0.1% below the 99.9% stated availability, CBAD will credit
Customer 10% of monthly recurring charges up to 30% in total.

15.3 CBAD will use its best efforts to repair any inoperable Voice Service or FUSE Internet Access port
within four (4) hours after Customer has notified CBAD that such port is inoperable by opening a trouble ticket
with eMerge repair. If such port remains inoperable for more than eight (8) hours after Customer has notified
CBAD that such port is inoperable, CBAD will credit Customer's account for an amount equal to one-thirtieth
(1/30) of the applicable monthly charge for such port. The same credit will apply for each additional eight (8)
hour period that the port remains inoperable.

15.4 The total amount of all credits for any one inoperable port will not exceed the monthly port charge for
such inoperable port. The credit referred to herein shall be CBAD's entire liability and Customer's exclusive
remedy for any damages resulting from such inoperable port.

15.5 CBAD is providing a clear channel T1 or Service over Cincinnati Bell Ethernet Services, on which the
Customer can run multiple applications - voice and data. Voice is given priority across the network. If the
Customer is installed using G.711 (uncompressed voice), the Customer will use approximately 80 Kbps per
active call (out of 1.5 Mbps). If G.729 (compressed voice) is used, the Customer will use approximately 32
Kbps per active call (out of 1.5 Mbps). When no voice calls are present, the full 1.5 Mbps T1 speed is
available for Data. CBAD refers to this as Dynamic Bandwidth Allocation.

For example, if 5 voice calls are taking place, here's what would happen:

Compression Used Available

Code Voice Bandwidth Data Bandwidth

G.711 400 Kbps 1.1 Mbps

G.729 160 Kbps 1.3 Mbps

16. Scope. CBAD (j) shall use reasonable commercial efforts to commence provisioning of Service to

Customer on or before the Service Activation Date, which is scheduled to be the first date of order activation;
and (i) is authorized to act as Customer's agent in placing orders with other carriers in order to provide
information services, if requested. Usage charges shall be based on (i) the rates for Service set forth herein,
as applicable; and (i) actual usage of CBAD's network from establishment of a connection between the
calling telephone and the called telephone to termination, as determined in CBAD’s sole discretion.

Confidential - Colerain Township Page 9 of 9
Services Agreement #56843.3 — Addendum #02640025



COLERAIN TOWNSHIP, HAMILTON COUNTY
Post Interfund Transfers

8/20/2014 10:04:30 AM
UAN v2014.3

Transfer #:
Post Date:
Tran Date:
Amount:

From Fund:

From Account:

To Fund:
To Account:

Reason:

27 Status:
08/20/2014 Approval:
08/20/2014 Approval Date:
$50,000.00 Void Date:
1000

1000-910-910-0400

2181

2181-931-0000

TRANSFER

Open

Page 1 of 1



V6Ll 151

NIVdd10D

109[0.Ud
Juswabeue
JU=2UWNO0Qd H



ydjopuey] Ay pue 1apauydg uouueyg ﬁm\ém uarey ‘sxeadg Louep] ‘suam I “Ianeyuairg
yuer] ‘praydayg 119qoy “Ao[RIA Ue(] JO SULSISUOD 33)JTUIWO)) SPI0DAY drysumog, urerajo) o
(ASDd ‘MDDD) S[[Ed DUSIAUOD JAI] pue (erepueA Jo A1D) JISIA ais [edIsAyq  ©
Sa1poq 3UnIPaIddY MI[OJ pue a1ly ©

UM 98e10)S DTUOIIDF[ pUk JUSWSSRURIA JUSWNIO(] dsequ) pajeprfea’

SUIa}SAS 9YI[ 1930 0} pareduwrod 3500 mo]  ©

WI93SAS JUaUIaSeur Ul JUSWNOOP JIUOIIDI[A JO SSAUI[PUSLIJ-I1asn pue adusladxa 1011 O

'SPI0231 Y[ J1SIA IO s3sanbai axewr 03 paau sajeururd

SIp I19Y} WIOL} SJUSUWINDOP AN IO Ppe 0} ULS0] Ued SIaW03snd [ewrau] “wa)sAs roded
[eo1sAyd e axI[un ‘sjuawnoop 3urdeuet Jo \m_gsumm pasealdur pue AOuepunpal dnpai 0} padN  ©

uodn paseq waisAg yuswadeue A JUSWNIO 3SegU() SPUSWIIOIDI" "

(21U013033) GOE‘6T$ IN0GoIJ Aq dsequ() ©
(1oded 1eorsAyd) ¢/H 114 weysAg Surr 1933 ©
(oruompad) 000°G9$ uotsn qe], o
wo1j sfesodoid uonnjos
a3e103s JuswadeUERW JUSWINDOP [edISAYd pue JIUOIS[S pajenjeas sey "

***UOTJRISTUTWPY
digysumo]. ureis[od)



san uorssnurad s,uonjensiurupe uodn paseq ssadde PLSIY O

Sunpepai pue s3unun paururraepard
uodn paseq sp1oda1 AreurdpsIp pue suoreN[eAd ‘SUOIEII}ISD dAJHIDI PUe |p1ess 03 AJ[Iqy O
JUawmOop [edIsAyd oy JNOYIIM SJUSWNDIOP JAILIDI pue Yo1eas o} AJ[Iqy O

OAOILIJOY] o
syuaurarbaiz aoueuranog eyep pue juswmdop yim Ajdwod o3 drysumoj, urerd[o)) sa[qeuy o

syuawndop jo A103s1y pue [rerj yypne [[ng o

[OIIUOD UOISISA PUR UOHUS}AI PIJRIDOSSE YITM Blep pue saZewt JIUOII[d JO 93eI0)s 1N O
2l0}G .

(a1 9aLordwa ayy
jo 11ed e aq prnoys pue parmyded usaq jou sey jeym) ‘spuanoop Jutsstur uo 3rodar 03 AIqy 0
[rewrs woxy AJ3oa1rp sadessawr 10/pue sjuswndop peoydn) o

(S901N0SY UeWINE] pUe a1, ‘9110 )
‘syuauniredap drysumo], ureIa[o)) Woj uaisAs juswadeue JUsWndOp asequ) 0} uedg O

arnyde

uorjewiony juawndod MH
drysumofg, ureiajod)



‘SPadU JuswaA0Idwl
waysAs pue A3ojouds) mo azAeue
0} 9NUIJU0D 9M pUe 3SIIe P[NOYS Pasu sy} J1
uodn puedxs 03 Teryuajod st 1913 UOHNOG
JUoWIZeURA JUSWINDO(] 9segu YIIM

suonmjos SIO LISy

suonnjog SuLIPdUIUY O JusuwadeueN

MITAIY Ue[J OTUOIPI[Y O J0BIJUOD) PUE IOPUIA

[OIJUOD) SS9201] I0J SISIPPIYD O JUSWa3eURA]
sSunosy yuapduf Juaunreda g 90110

pIeog 10} yusuwrodeuey epuady o 3urpreoquO YH
d[qedeJ SjUnoxDy o JuowadeueA 103[01 ] sonI[e]

UOTI}EWOINY JUSWNIO(] 91NNy

[enpuajoJ diysumoj, urersafo))



v10¢/02/11

¥10¢/91/11 — $10¢/91/01
710¢/T0/01

v10T/¥2/6

v102/01/6

710¢/60/6

7102/90/8 — ¥102/10/8
¥102/0€/9- ¥10¢/¥¢/T

v102/¥C/C
uona[dwo)) jo sajeq

m.HON\NO\NO ................................................... WHTH ﬁv.—.ﬁﬁ QUﬂOhH

mHON\NO\.HO .................... mv.—HHONS UﬂMQSHH .mu.—Hnm mmU.m\rHOw .mu.gm WMHMAH
$10/0C/TL 131UdD) Ayrununuo)) “SUrioy “UoneISIurupy
AT 0D

Juowadeuey pue Iop) 19901
PI[NP3YDS SIDINOSIY IIINOSOIJ/3SequU()
3o 30301 ]

I9PpIQ Iseyping

reaoxddy preog

MITAY Tesodoig

MITAIY 99PTWIWO)) SPIOIY

UOT}eJUISIL ] [eITU]

aurpauri], pasodoig




-Su1suan [puo1ppy 3004ddp am SSajun aspaioul J0U (J1m 3500 OUPUIFUIDIA] [VNUUY Y T,

998°0T$ TVLOL
09S°T$ S0¢61% [P10L-qns
popNOU Ie3L 3s] G8ScS SIdUUEDG NSiNng (¢) arempiep]
09S'T$ 02L'ST$ BUISUDIT dIeMJOS 3sequ()

UaWINd0(] Y




